
SOUTHERN
® 

UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
-

BATON ROUGE • NEW ORLEANS • SHREVEPORT 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MEETING 

August 21, 2020 

9:00 a.m. 



1 | P a g e  
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
Committee of the Whole – Virtual Meeting 

Friday, August 21, 2020 
9:00 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Call to Order and Invocation 
  

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda   
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Action Item(s): 
 

A. Request Approval of the Minutes from the July 29, 2020 Legal Affairs 
Committee and Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors  
 

B. Request Ratification of Summer 2020 Graduates (SUBR) 
 

C. Request Approval of Mission Statements Upon Having Been Reviewed by 
System Campuses (SUBR, SUNO, SUSLA, SULC, SUAREC) 

 
D. Request Approval of the Distance Education Course Attendance Policy 

(SUBR) 
 

E. Request Approval of the Policy on Mandatory Professional Licensure 
Disclosure (SUBR) 

 
F. Request Approval of the Policy on the Determination of Student Location for 

State Authorization and Disclosure (SUBR) 
 

G. Request Approval of the Policy relative to COVID-19 Face Covering (SUS) 
 

H. Request Approval of System Uniform Title IX Policy and Procedures 
(SUS) 

 
I. Request Approval to Amend the Follett, Inc. (Bookstore) Contract and 

Access Fee to Support the Acquisition of E-book Courses and Materials 
(SUBR, SUNO, SUSLA) 

 
J. Request Approval of the Southern University and A&M College Endowed 

Professorship Nominees for August 2020 - July 2023 (SUBR) 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
K. Request Approval to negotiate a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) 

between the Southern University and A&M College (SUBR) and Louisiana 
Leadership Institute (LLI) (SUBR) 

 
L. Request Approval of Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) between 

Southern University at Shreveport and the Downtown Airport (SUSLA) 
 

M. Request Approval of the Mixed Reality Virtual Innovation Gaming and 
Entertainment Sports Institute (SULC) 

 
N. Request Approval of the 3+3 BA/BS and JD Degree Program Articulation 

Agreement between Southern University Law Center and Boise State 
University (SULC) 

 
O. FY2020-2021 Operating Budgets: 

 
1. Southern University System Employee Schedule  
2. Southern University Board and System Administration Operating Budget 
3. Southern University Board and System Inter-Institutional Cost Transfer 

Budget  
4. Southern University Board and System Administration Inter-Institutional 

Transfers Direct Charges Budget 
5. Southern University Board and System Special Meals and Miscellaneous 

Travel Budget 
6. Southern University Baton Rouge Campus Operating Budget 
7. Southern University Law Center Operating Budget 
8. Southern University New Orleans Campus Operating Budget  
9. Southern University Shreveport Campus Operating Budget 
10. Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center Operating 

Budget 
11. SUBR Athletics Intercollegiate Budget 
12. SUSLA Athletics Budget 

 
P. Request Approval of Budget Adjustment - BA-7  

1. Southern University and A&M College Baton Rouge 
2. Southern University at Shreveport 

 
Q. Request Approval of the Policy for Indirect Cost Recovery and 

Reallocation Plan (SUSLA) 
 

R. Request Approval for Campus Technology Access Fee (SUSLA) 
 

S. Request Approval to Adjust Math Lab Course Fees (SUSLA) 
 

 



3 | P a g e  
 

T. Request Approval of Personnel Actions for Positions equal to or greater than 
$60,000 

 
Name Position/Campus Salary Funding 

Source 
1. Clyde Bagley Director of Beef Cattle Research Program 

(New Appointment) 
SUAREC 

$90,000.00 State 

2. B. Summer Chandler Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$90,000.00 State 

3. Brunetta Dillard Vice-Chancellor for Finance 
(New Appointment) 

SUAREC 

$145,000.00 State 

4. Robert Easley Director of Advancement 
(New Appointment) 

SUAREC 

$80,000.00 State 

5. Jeremy R. Gathe Associate General Counsel & Executive 
Director for Compliance and Ethics 

(New Appointment) 
SUS 

$95,000.00 State                                                                                      

6. Terry Hall Vice Chancellor for Finance and 
Administration 

(Salary Adjustment) 
SULC 

$162,000.00 State 

7. Michael Harris, Sr. Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$99,000.00 State 

8. Joseph M. Isanga Visiting Faculty  
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$99,000.00 State 

9. Flandus McClinton Vice-President for Finance and 
Administration 

(Salary Adjustment) 
SUS 

$185,000.00 State 

10. Benjamin Pugh Vice-Chancellor for Finance and 
Administration 

(Salary Adjustment) 
SUBR 

$165,000.00 State 

11. Greg Sergienko Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$108,000.00 State 

12. Ryan B. Stoa Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$95,000.00 State 



4 | P a g e  
 

13. Tracie Washington Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$90,000.00 State 

14. Shandrea P. Williams Visiting Faculty 
(New Appointment) 

SULC 

$99,000.00 State 

15. Ashagre A. Yigletu Dean of the Graduate School 
(New Appointment) 

SUBR 

$140,000.00 State 

16. Luria Young Full Professor 
SMED/College of Science/Agriculture 

(New Appointment) 
SUBR 

$83,200.00 State 

 
 
 

 
U. Request Approval for Sabbatical Leave – Professor Cleveland Coon (SULC) 

 
V. Resolutions 

 
6. Informational Item(s) 

 
A. Facilities and Property Update (SUS) 
B. Medical Marijuana Update (SUAREC) 

 
7. Other Business 

 
8.  Adjournment 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Legal Affairs Committee – Virtual Meeting 

Wednesday, July 29, 2020 
9:00 a.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 
 
The virtual meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board 
Chairman Atty. Domoine Rutledge.  
 
The Invocation was given by Rev. Samuel Tolbert    
 
The Legal Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairman Edwin Shorty.  
 
Roll Call by Dr. Ray Belton 
 
Present:  Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Atty. Jody Amedee, Mr. John 
Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Bakari Garvey, Mr. 
Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty Ed Shorty, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon 
Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield and  Mrs. Arlanda Williams. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion and second, the agenda was recommended for adoption. 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  Informational Item(s): 

 
A. Dr. Cheryl Taylor v. Dr. Ray L. Belton, President, Southern University & 

Agricultural and Mechanical College; Board of Supervisors     
United States District Court, Middle District of Louisiana  
Case No.: 3:20-cv-00427-JWD-SDJ   
Alleging violation of FMLA  

 
There was no discussion on Agenda Item 6. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  ADJOURNMENT 
There was a motion and second to adjourn.  Motion passed.   



2 | P a g e  
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
Virtual Meeting 

Wednesday, July 29, 2020 
(following the Legal Affairs Committee) 

Committee as A Whole 
9:00 a.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 
The virtual Committee as a Whole meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was 
called to order by Board Chairman Atty. Domoine Rutledge.  
 
Roll Call by Dr. Ray Belton 
 
Present:  Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Atty. Jody Amedee, Mr. John 
Barthelemy, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Dr. Curman Gaines, Mr. Bakari Garvey, Mr. 
Sam Gilliam, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Atty. Patrick Magee, Atty Ed Shorty, Mrs. Ann Smith, Dr. Leon 
Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitfield and  Mrs. Arlanda Williams. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3:  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Attorney Patrick Magee, the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4:  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  Action Item(s): 
 
Atty Patrick Magee made a motion to approve both Items A & B, the motion was Second by Dr. 
Leon Tarver.  Motion passed  
 

A.  Request Approval of the Minutes from the Special Virtual Meetings of the 
Board of Supervisors: 
 

1. Friday, June 12, 2020  
2. Friday, July 6, 2020  
 

B. Request Approval of Personnel Action for Position equal to or greater than $60,000 
(*Executive Session May Be Required) 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1.  Dr. Cheryl Taylor Associate Professor of Nursing 

(Transfer) 
SUBR 

$80,000.00 State 



3 | P a g e  
 

    
  
AGENDA ITEM 8:  OTHER BUSINESS 
Attorney Patrick Magee recommend looking at the bylaws and revising to give the president 
authority to make personnel decisions such as the one discussed today.   
Attorney Rutledge said it would be noted for discussion for the personnel committee. 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  ADJOURNMENT 
There was a motion by Attorney Patrick Magee and second by Dr. Leon Tarver to adjourn.   
Motion passed.   
 











































 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

POLICY TITLE 

COVID-19 Face Covering/Mask Policy  

 

POLICY NUMBER 

7-007 

Responsible Unit:  

Office of Human Resources 
Office of Student Affairs 
 

Responsible Official: 

Associate Vice President for Human Resources 
Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs 
 
Policy Classification: 

Human Resources 

Effective Date: 

08/01/2020 
 

 

Last Reviewed Date: 

 

 
 

Origination Date:  
07/01/2020 

 

I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 

In accordance with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidelines, the university 
is implementing the following policy in order to prevent and/or slow the spread of COVID-19 among 
university community members. The CDC recommends that everyone wear some form of face 
covering/mask in public settings where other social distancing measures are difficult to maintain, as 
a means of reducing the incidence of spread of COVID-19 from potentially infected but asymptomatic 
or pre-symptomatic individuals.  

 
 CDC recommends all people 2 years of age and older wear a mask in public settings and when 

around people who don’t live in your household, especially when other social distancing 
measures are difficult to maintain. 

 COVID-19 can be spread by people who do not have symptoms and do not know that they 
are infected. That’s why it’s important for everyone to wear masks in public settings and 
practice social distancing (staying at least 6 feet away from other people). 

 While masks are strongly encouraged to reduce the spread of COVID-19, the CDC recognizes 
there are specific instances when wearing a mask may not be feasible.  

 
CDC further indicates that masks should not be worn by: 

 Children younger than 2 years old. 
 Anyone who has trouble breathing. 
 Anyone who is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the mask without 

assistance. 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html


 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

Furthermore, consistent with guidance by the Louisiana Department of Health (LDH) face 
coverings/masks should be worn in indoor public spaces and anytime in public when you are near 
individuals who are not members of your immediate household. Wearing a face covering/mask is 
about protecting others and when others wear a face covering/mask they protect you. Wearing a face 
covering/mask is not a substitute for maintaining a social distance of six feet from anyone not in your 
household. 
https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/page/3940 
 
In effect, while keeping a physical distance of at least six feet from other people, practicing good 
hygiene measures (e.g., frequent hand washing, avoiding touching the face, covering coughs and 
sneezes), and staying home when ill are recognized protections against COVID-19, wearing a face 
covering/mask that covers the nose and mouth can help protect others. In order to help ensure the 
health and safety of the university community and the public, face coverings/masks are required to 
be worn on-site at the university: 
 

 Indoors when other people are present; this includes common areas, such as classrooms, 
shared-office spaces, hallways, stairways, restrooms and elevators, etc. 

 Outdoors when keeping a six-foot distance from others may not be possible. 
 Inside university vehicles 

 
For the purposes of this policy, a face covering/mask means a cloth/fabric or a disposable surgical-
style mask that covers the nose and mouth. While indoors, employees may remove their masks only 
if they are in their own enclosed private workspaces with no one else present, or a student in his/her 
privately assigned dorm room. This policy is subject to change based on requirements and guidance 
from federal, state, and local authorities and with ultimate approval by the campus chancellor.  
 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 

This policy applies to employees (administrators, faculty, and staff), students, and visitors (vendors, 
parents, etc.) and requires all such individuals to wear face coverings/masks that cover their mouths 
and noses as described in the policy statement/rationale section. 
 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 

If an employee indicates compliance is not possible due to medical reasons, the individual should be 
referred to Human Resources to request an accommodation. If a student indicates compliance is not 
possible due to medical reasons, the student should be referred to the Dean of Students (or equivalent 
unit) and Disability Services in the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs to request an 
accommodation.  
 

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 

COVID-19: There is currently an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus. The 
virus has been named “SARS-CoV-2,” and the disease it causes has been named “Coronavirus 
Disease 2019” (COVID-19). On January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services (US HHS) issued a declaration of a public health emergency related to COVID-19 
and mobilized the Operating Divisions of HHS. In addition, on March 13, 2020, the President declared 
a national emergency in response to COVID-19. 
 

https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/page/3940


 
 

3 | P a g e  
 

Face Covering/Mask: A cloth/fabric or disposable surgical-style mask that covers the nose and mouth. 
The use of face coverings/masks are intended to provide a physical barrier to prevent transmission of 
any respiratory droplets. The CDC recommends that everyone wear a face covering/mask in public 
settings where other social distancing measures are difficult to maintain, as a means of reducing the 
incidence of spread of COVID-19 from potentially infected but asymptomatic or pre-symptomatic 
individuals. 
 
Face Shield: A face shield is a device used to protect the user’s eyes and face from bodily fluids, 
liquid splashes, or potentially infectious materials. Generally, a face shield is situated at the crown of 
the head and is constructed with plastic to cover the user’s eyes and face. 
 

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 

Employees are expected to comply with the face covering/mask policy for the health and safety of 
themselves, students, their colleagues, and the university community. Non-compliance issues should 
be referred to Human Resources for action. As noted in the compliance section of this policy, if an 
employee indicates compliance is not possible due to medical reasons, the individual should be 
referred to Human Resources to request an accommodation. 
 
Students are expected to comply with the face covering/mask policy for the health and safety of 
themselves, their fellow students, faculty, staff, visitors and the university community. Non-
compliance issues should be referred to the Dean of Students (or equivalent unit) and Disability 
Services in the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs for action. As noted in the 
compliance section of this policy, if a student indicates compliance is not possible due to medical 
reasons, the student should be referred to the Dean of Students (or equivalent unit) and Disability 
Services in the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs to request an accommodation.  
 

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION  

For additional information, please visit the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 
guidelines website at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-

coverings.html. For additional information, please visit the Louisiana Department of Health (LDH) at 
https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/page/3940. 
 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 

This policy is new and was created in response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.  The policy 
became effective on August 1, 2020. This policy is temporary and is subject to an annual review 
cycle.   
 

VIII. POLICY URL 

This policy is posted on the Southern University System website where the system policies are 
archived – www.sus.edu. 
 

 

 

 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html
https://ldh.la.gov/index.cfm/page/3940
http://www.sus.edu/










































































August 19, 2020


Dr. Ray L. Belton

President-Chancellor 

Southern University System

J.S. Clark Adm. Bldg.

Baton Rouge, LA 70813


Dear Dr. Belton:


The Division of Academic Affairs is submitting the list of faculty nominees for en-
dowed professorships for consideration for approval by the Board of Supervisors. 
The Division has reviewed the list of faculty nominated by their schools/colleges to 
ensure that the criteria for selection has been followed.


Endowed professorships exist in each of our major colleges and schools. Every 
three years, faculty in the college can apply for the professorship.   The list being 
submitted for the August 2020 meeting includes those endowed professors recom-
mended for approval for 2020 through 2023. 


Based on the criteria for selection, the candidates may be nominated by colleagues 
from within or without the University.  Faculty must submit a resume, documentation 
of all research, and five letters of recommendation.  These applicants must also 
show an interest within and outside of the academic setting.  They should foster a 
spirit of collegiality and work that benefits both the community and university. The 
schools/colleges select the nominee whose submission for eligibility is reviewed by 
Academic Affairs.


We are asking that the attached list be considered for approval during the August 
2020 meeting of the Board of Supervisors.


Sincerely,


Dr. Bijoy K. Sahoo

Interim Executive Vice Chancellor 


Approved:  _________________________________	 Date: ________________

	 	 	 Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.		 	 	 	 	 

	 	 	 President-Chancellor


8-19-20











 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence 

WWW.SUS.EDU 
 

 
J.S. Clark Administration Building   

4th Floor  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

 

Office of The  
  President-Chancellor 

(225) 771-4680 

 

Fax Number 
(225) 771-5522 

 

       Southern University and A&M College System 
 

August 19, 2020 

 

Board of Supervisors 

Southern University & A&M College System 

P.O. Box 10878 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

 

Re:  Request Approval to Negotiate and Execute Agreement between Southern University and A&M 

College and the Louisiana Leadership Institute 

 

Dear Honorable Board Members:  

 

With the current social distancing requirements, and in light of the postponement of spring sports, there 

is an anticipated need to explore alternate facilities for the Southern University Department of Athletics.  

 

Additionally, the University desires to implement a program that aligns with its mission of educating 

students during these unprecedented times.  Our interest includes addressing, in part, the digital divide, 

while strengthening the educational pathways between K-12 and higher education. Therein, we have 

identified a potential facility that would be able to accommodate both undertakings. 

 

This communication comes as a request for authorization to enable the University to negotiate and 

execute a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement, with Lease by and between Southern University A&M 

College and the Louisiana Leadership Institute.  Said execution will only occur with the concurrence 

of the Board Chair.   

 

I thank you in advance for your consideration of this matter. It is anticipated that the impact will be 

invaluable to both our community and state.    

 

 

Sincerely,  
 

 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 

President-Chancellor 

 

 

http://www.sus.edu/






















































Item O

FY2020-2021 Operating Budgets 

(Sent Under Separate Cover Due to File Size)





STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

Use this section for additional Statutory Dedications, if needed.

The subtotal will automatically be transferred to Page 1.

MEANS OF FINANCING 

GENERAL FUND BY:

 STATUTORY DEDICATIONS
Pari-mutuel Live Racing Facility Gaming 
Control Fund (G09)
Southern University AgCenter Program 
Fund (G12)
Education Excellence Fund (Z18)
[Select Statutory Dedication]
[Select Statutory Dedication]
[Select Statutory Dedication]

SUBTOTAL (to Page 1)

Use this section for additional Program Names, if needed.

The subtotal will automatically be transferred to Page 1.

PROGRAM EXPENDITURES DOLLARS POS DOLLARS POS DOLLARS POS

PROGRAM NAME:

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

$0 0 $0 0 $0 0

SUBTOTAL (to Page 1) $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

SUBMISSION DATE:  08/19/20

AGENCY BA-7 NUMBER:  1

DEPARTMENT:  Higher Education FOR OPB USE ONLY

AGENCY:  Southern University Board of Supervisor OPB LOG NUMBER AGENDA NUMBER

SCHEDULE NUMBER: 19-615  

ADDENDUM TO PAGE 1

CURRENT ADJUSTMENT REVISED

FY 2020-2021 (+) or (-) FY 2020-2021

$50,000 $0 $50,000

$750,000 $0 $750,000

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$800,000 $0 $800,000

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 2



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

Policy and Procedure Memorandum No. 52, Revised, requires that all Requests for Changes in
Appropriation be fully documented.  At a minimum, the following questions and statements must
be answered.  Use Continuation Sheets as needed. FAILURE TO ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS
COMPLETELY WILL BE CAUSE TO RETURN THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT ACTION.

1. What is the source of funding (if other than General Fund (Direct))? Specifically identify any grant or public law and
the purposes of the funds, if applicable.  A copy of any grant application and the notice of approved grant or
appropriation must accompany the BA-7.  What are the expenditure restrictions of the funds?

2. Enter the financial impact of the requested adjustment for the next four fiscal years.

MEANS OF FINANCING
OR EXPENDITURE

GENERAL FUND BY:
 DIRECT $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
 INTERAGENCY TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
 FEES & SELF-GENERATED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
 STATUTORY DEDICATIONS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FEDERAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

3. If this action requires additional personnel, provide a detailed explanation below:

4. Explain why this request can't be postponed for consideration in the agency's budget request for next fiscal
year.

5. Is this an after the fact BA-7, e.g.; have expenditures been made toward the program this BA-7 is for? If yes,
explain per PPM No.52.

The source of funding for this BA-7 is general fund direct. The purpose of the funding is to develop and implement an 
Educational Pathway Academy to prepare students access to a postsecondary education opportunity specific to 
Southern University and A&M College. The academy will afford students with virtual learning opportunities, intensive 
tutorial services, academic credits and cultivate student leaders.The funds for the Southern University Shreveport 
Campus will be used to support current activities and essential operations.  

The approval of this BA-7 will not require additional personnel.  

The funds are generated in this fiscal year and will be spent in this fiscal year.

This is not an after the fact BA-7.

FY 2024-2025FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024FY 2020-2021

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 3



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

CURRENT ADJUSTMENT REVISED
FY 2020-2021 (+) OR (-) FY 2020-2021

4.  If there are no performance impacts associated with this BA-7 request, then fully explain this lack of 
performance impact.  

3.  Briefly explain any performance impacts other than or in addition to effects on objectives and performance 
indicators.  (For example:  Are there any anticipated direct or indirect effects on  program management or 

service recipients ?   Will this BA-7 have a positive or negative impact on some other program or agency? )

JUSTIFICATION FOR ADJUSTMENT(S):  Explain the necessity of the adjustment(s).  

The BA-7 will not impact any other program or agency. 

5.  Describe the performance impacts of failure to approve this BA-7.  (Be specific.   Relate performance 
impacts to objectives and performance indicators.)   

The BA-7 will not have any performance impact.

The BA-7 will not have any performance impact. 

PERFORMANCE IMPACT OF MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

2. Complete the following information for each objective and related performance indicators that will be affected 
by this request.  (Note:  Requested adjustments may involve revisions to existing objectives and performance 

indicators or creation of new objectives and performance indicators.  Repeat this portion of the request form as 

often as necessary.)    

1. Identify and explain the programmatic impacts (positive or negative) that will result from the approval of this 
BA-7.
The impact from the funding will serve to bridge students with higher education opportunities and options for 
academic course offerings. To support current activities and essential operations required at Southern 
University Shreveport Campus.

OBJECTIVE:  

LE
VE

L

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR NAME
PERFORMANCE STANDARD

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 4



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 1 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $4,399,565 ($1,200,000) $3,199,565 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $4,399,565 ($1,200,000) $3,199,565 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $1,649,530 $0 $1,649,530 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $88,000 $0 $88,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $769,942 $0 $769,942 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $185,000 $0 $185,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $171,100 $0 $171,100 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $80,000 $0 $80,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $94,000 $0 $94,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $1,336,993 ($1,200,000) $136,993 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $25,000 $0 $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $4,399,565 ($1,200,000) $3,199,565 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

MEANS OF FINANCING:

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Board of Supervisors 

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 5



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 1 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT ($1,200,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,200,000)

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges ($1,200,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,200,000)

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ($1,200,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,200,000)

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Board of Supervisors 

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 6



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 2 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $17,275,725 $1,000,000 $18,275,725 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $3,028,515 $0 $3,028,515 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $62,181,366 $0 $62,181,366 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $1,593,248 $0 $1,593,248 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $84,078,854 $1,000,000 $85,078,854 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $40,450,820 $122,000 $40,572,820 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $181,377 $0 $181,377 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $18,669,613 $78,000 $18,747,613 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $268,210 $20,000 $288,210 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $7,662,277 $0 $7,662,277 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $865,911 $50,000 $915,911 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $1,026,480 $100,000 $1,126,480 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $10,746,988 $100,000 $10,846,988 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $4,017,497 $0 $4,017,497 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $189,681 $530,000 $719,681 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $84,078,854 $1,000,000 $85,078,854 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 209 209 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 260 260 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 469 469 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 469 469 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

Support Education in 
Louisiana First Fund
 (G10)

$1,593,248 $0 $1,593,248 $0 $0 $0 $0
Education Excellence Fund 
(Z18) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Baton Rouge Campus

MEANS OF FINANCING:

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 7



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 2 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $122,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $122,000

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $78,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $78,000

 Travel $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000

 Operating Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000

 Professional Services $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

 Other Charges $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $530,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $530,000

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Baton Rouge Campus

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 8



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 3 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $3,735,319 $0 $3,735,319 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $13,967,744 $0 $13,967,744 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $172,939 $0 $172,939 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $17,876,002 $0 $17,876,002 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $9,471,530 $0 $9,471,530 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $3,609,686 $0 $3,609,686 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $385,000 $0 $385,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $1,690,629 $0 $1,690,629 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $250,000 $0 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $1,220,590 $0 $1,220,590 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $632,027 $0 $632,027 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $366,540 $0 $366,540 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $250,000 $0 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $17,876,002 $0 $17,876,002 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 46 46 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 46 46 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 46 46 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

Support Education in 
Louisiana First Fund
 (G10)

$172,939 $0 $172,939 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Law Center 

MEANS OF FINANCING:

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 9



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 3 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Law Center 

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 10



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 4 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $8,158,721 $0 $8,158,721 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $14,947,545 $0 $14,947,545 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $502,799 $0 $502,799 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $23,609,065 $0 $23,609,065 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $10,111,886 $0 $10,111,886 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $4,740,079 $0 $4,740,079 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $37,000 $0 $37,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $2,285,294 $0 $2,285,294 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $285,500 $0 $285,500 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $5,450,826 $0 $5,450,826 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $523,480 $0 $523,480 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $175,000 $0 $175,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $23,609,065 $0 $23,609,065 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 38 38 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 116 116 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 154 154 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 154 154 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

Support Education in 
Louisiana First Fund
 (G10)

$452,799 $0 $452,799 $0 $0 $0 $0

Pari-mutuel Live Racing 
Facility Gaming Control Fund 
(G09)

$50,000 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - New Orleans Campus 

MEANS OF FINANCING:

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 11



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 4 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 38 0 0 0 38
 Unclassified 0 116 0 0 0 116
TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 154 0 0 0 154

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL POSITIONS 0 154 0 0 0 154

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - New Orleans Campus 

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 12



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 5 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $4,958,497 $200,000 $5,158,497 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $10,008,838 $0 $10,008,838 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $162,060 $0 $162,060 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $15,129,395 $200,000 $15,329,395 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $7,402,302 $75,000 $7,477,302 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $3,666,095 $27,000 $3,693,095 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $38,300 $5,000 $43,300 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $2,166,888 $20,000 $2,186,888 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $140,200 $5,000 $145,200 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $19,500 $40,000 $59,500 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $947,487 $0 $947,487 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $748,623 $0 $748,623 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $0 $28,000 $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $15,129,395 $200,000 $15,329,395 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 7 7 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 127 127 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 134 134 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 134 134 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

Support Education in 
Louisiana First Fund
 (G10)

$162,060 $0 $162,060 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Shreveport Campus 

MEANS OF FINANCING:

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 13



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 5 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $75,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $27,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,000

 Travel $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000

 Operating Services $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000

 Supplies $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000

 Professional Services $40,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $40,000

 Other Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $28,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $28,000

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,000

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 7 0 0 0 7
 Unclassified 0 127 0 0 0 127
TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 134 0 0 0 134

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL POSITIONS 0 134 0 0 0 134

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Shreveport Campus 

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 14



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 5 NAME:

CURRENT REQUESTED REVISED ADJUSTMENT OUTYEAR PROJECTIONS

FY 2020-2021 ADJUSTMENT FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 FY 2024-2025

GENERAL FUND BY:

 Direct $4,914,457 $0 $4,914,457 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Fees & Self-Generated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Statutory Dedications * $1,797,470 $0 $1,797,470 $0 $0 $0 $0

FEDERAL FUNDS $3,654,209 $0 $3,654,209 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL MOF $10,366,136 $0 $10,366,136 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $5,429,873 $0 $5,429,873 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $50,000 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $2,579,235 $0 $2,579,235 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $121,000 $0 $121,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $343,304 $0 $343,304 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $224,289 $0 $224,289 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $44,202 $0 $44,202 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $1,423,883 $0 $1,423,883 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $150,350 $0 $150,350 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $10,366,136 $0 $10,366,136 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

* Statutory Dedications:

Support Education in 
Louisiana First Fund
 (G10)

$47,470 $0 $47,470 $0 $0 $0 $0

Tobacco Tax Health Care 
Fund (E32) $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Southern University AgCenter 
Program Fund (G12) $750,000 $0 $750,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
[Select Statutory Dedication] $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Agricultural Research and Extension Center

MEANS OF FINANCING:

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 15



STATE OF LOUISIANA

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND BUDGET

REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT

PROGRAM 5 NAME:

MEANS OF FINANCING:
State General 

Fund

Interagency 

Transfers

Fees & Self-

Generated 

Revenues

Statutory 

Dedications

Federal 

Funds
TOTAL

AMOUNT $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

 Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Compensation $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Related Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Travel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Operating Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Professional Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Other Charges $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Debt Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Interagency Transfers $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Acquisitions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 Major Repairs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

 UNALLOTTED $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

OVER / (UNDER) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

POSITIONS

 Classified 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Unclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL T.O. POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER CHARGES POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
NON-TO FTE POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL POSITIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0

PROGRAM LEVEL REQUEST FOR MID-YEAR BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Southern University - Agricultural Research and Extension Center

BA-7 FORM (7/1/2018) Page 16





















































































































































































Blackbaud University, Charleston, SC, Certificates of Completion in the Financial Edge 
Accounting Software, 1999 and 2002 

West Virginia College of Graduate Studies, Institute, VW 

WV Bureau for Engineering & Science Training, Introduction to □BASE Ill Plus and 
Using □BASE Ill Plus, January 1988 

Kanawha County Schools - Adult Education Program, Charleston, VW. Completed 
course In Basic Computer Skills, March 1987 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 

12/12 - Present West Virginia State University Research & Development 
Corporation, Institute, VW 

Associate Vice President of Business and Finance and Interim Executive Director 

1. Specific duties and responsibilltles

• Assures that all policies are addressed regarding federal, state, and private grants
and budgetary resource allocations.

, Ensures budgetary and operational compliance with all grant, foundation, private 
revenue, independent contractors, and all other regulatory and/or contractual 
obligations. 

, Monitors revenues, expenditures and budget transfers through the automated 
financial software system and generates and provides reports on monthly, 
quarterly and annually. 

• Reviews budget transfers,
• Strong computer skills and ability to make oral/written presentations.
, Assists with the preparation for annual financial and compliance audit. 
, Assists with fiscal monitoring conducted by funding entity. 
• Conducts an annual audit of all processes to ensure compliance related to

financial managemen!/accounling.
• Prepares responses to annual internal controls questionnaire.
• Performs special projects and related work, as necessary.

2. Land-Grant specific duties and fiscal responsibilities

• Maintains official records and documents, and ensures compliance wlth federal,

stale and local policies and regulations.
• Prepares budgetary documents for the administration.
• Prepares financial forecasting, financial strategies, and tax and audit documents.

' 





















































































































































     Office of the Executive Vice President/ 
     Executive Vice Chancellor 

     J. S. Clark Adm. Bldg. 
     P. O. Box 9819 
     Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

August 11, 2020 

Dr. Ray L. Belton 
President-Chancellor  
Southern University System 
J.S. Clark Adm. Bldg. 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

Dear Dr. Belton: 

I am recommending that the salary of Mr. Benjamin Pugh, vice chancellor for Finance and Administration, 
increase to $165,000 annually, making his salary comparable to others in his position throughout the State of 
Louisiana.   

Mr. Pugh has demonstrated exceptional stewardship of the University’s financial resources, allowing the 
university to succeed as an institution of higher learning.  He has been critical to our success in the past and 
will be even more critical to the University achieving its strategic goals in the future as we work to provide 
quality instruction and services to our students during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

This recommended increase is appropriate to the position and his scope of work. If you should have any 
questions or concerns, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Bijoy K. Sahoo, Ph.D. 
Interim Executive Vice Chancellor/ 
Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 

APPROVED:  ______________________________________ DATE:_________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 

8-11-20







Benjamin W. Pugh 

 

OBJECTIVE: 
Seeking a challenging position which offers responsibility and opportunity for growth in 
higher education administration and management. 
 
EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE: 
Master of Science in Administration (MSA) 
Concentration in Health Services Administration  
Central Michigan University – May 2007 
 
Bachelor of Science in Accounting (BS) 
Southern University, 1976 – Cum Laude 
(Minor in Economics) 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 

2015-Present Southern University – Baton Rouge – Vice Chancellor for Finance and  
Administration 
• Serves as Chief Financial and Administrative Officer for the University 

reporting directly to the Chancellor. 
• Directly responsible for supervision of the Budget Office, Auxiliary Services, 

Facilities and Property, University Police, Purchasing Department, 
Comptroller’s Office, Property Management Office, and Motor Pool.    

 
2001-2015   Southern University –Shreveport – Vice Chancellor for Finance and 

  Administration 
• Serves as Chief Financial and Administrative Officer for the University 

reporting directly to the Chancellor. 
• Directly responsible for supervision of the Business Office, University Police, 

Information Technology Center, Human Resources, Facilities and Property. 

1999-2001   Southern University – Baton Rouge – Comptroller 
• Planned, directed and coordinated fiscal operations and financial accounting 

functions. 
• Developed accounting systems and procedures for recording revenues and 

expenditures. 
• Directed the maintenance of accounting records concerning appropriations 

or other revenues, payroll  expenses, supply and equipment purchases, travel 
expenses, contracting costs, and other financial transactions. 



Resume-Benjamin W. Pugh 
Page 2 
 
 
 

• Planned and directed operational or financial audits and other reviews to 
insure financial accountability, insure compliance with established standards, 
and enhance agency operating procedures; 

• Directed the preparation of financial statements and reports; 
• Reviewed and approved obligations and expenditures as needed; 
• Directed the review and preparation of budgets; 
• Supervised approximately 55 staff members. 

1995-1999 Southern University – Shreveport – Vice Chancellor for Fiscal Affairs and   
Administration 

• Served as Chief Financial and Administrative Officer for the University; 
• Served as supervisors for manager’s responsibility for the Business Office, 

University Police, Human Resources and Facilities and Property. 

1990-1995 Southern University – Baton Rouge – Director of Accounting Services 
• Coordinated the day-to-day operation of the Accounting Services Division of 

the Comptroller’s Office; 
• Served as supervisors to managers responsible for the areas of general 

accounting, auditing, accounts receivable, bank reconciliations and grants 
administration;  

• Reviewed the reconciliation of various general ledger accounts to ensure 
accuracy and accountability; 

• Prepared various work papers in conjunction with the fiscal year-end audit of 
the University’s financial statements. 

1980-1990 Southern University – Baton Rouge – Accountant II 
• Maintained the general fund account group under the general supervision of 

the accounting supervisor; 
• Participated in the compilation of the annual general fund budget; 
• Prepared journal entries for recording financial transactions and prepared 

various reconciliations; 
• Reviewed the general ledger accounts for valid ending balances; 
• Assisted in the preparation of the annual and interim financial statements. 

 

 

 

 



Resume-Benjamin W. Pugh 
Page 3 
 
 

1978-1980 Southern University – Baton Rouge – Accountant I 
• Maintained the general fund account group under the general supervision of 

the Accountant II 
• Assisted in the compilation of the annual general fund budget; 
• Assisted in the preparation of journal entries for recording financial 

transactions; 
• Assisted in the review of general ledger accounts. 




















































































































































































































	Item O - BA-7.pdf
	20200819143948057[8901].pdf
	FY21 BA-7#1-Transfer Funds




